

24" Built-in Kegerator Model: C124KEG



Owner's Manual

BEFORE USE, PLEASE READ AND FOLLOW ALL SAFETY RULES AND OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Appliance Safety	3	
Important Safeguards		
Parts Listing		
Installation Instructions		
Before Using Your Appliance	7	
Installation of Your Appliance	7	
Electrical Connection	7-8	
Extension Cord	8	
Installing the Stainless Steel Handle	8	
Installing the Kegerator	9-10	
Calibrating the Regulator	11	
Operating Your Appliance		
Control Panel	12	
ON/OFF Power	12	
Key Lock	12	
Setting the Temperature Control	12	
Interior Light	12	
Care and Maintenance	13	
Cleaning Your Appliance	13	
Power Failure	13	
Vacation Time	13	
Moving Your Appliance	13	
Energy Saving Tips	13	
Troubleshooting		
Limited Warranty	15	

APPLIANCE SAFETY

Your safety and the safety of others are very important.

We have provided many important safety messages in this manual and on your appliance. Always read and obey all safety messages.



This is the Safety Alert Symbol. The symbol alerts you to potential hazards that can kill or injure you and others. All safety messages will follow the Safety Alert Symbol and either the words "DANGER" or "WARNING".

\Lambda DANGER 🗛

NC

Danger means that failure to heed this safety statement may result in severe personal injury or death.

Warning means that failure to heed this safety statement may result in extensive product damage, serious personal injury, or death.

All safety messages will alert you about the potential hazard, tell you how to reduce the chance of injury, and let you know what can happen if the instructions are not followed.



IMPORTANT SAFEGUARDS

Before the appliance is used, it must be properly positioned and installed as described in this manual, so read the manual carefully. To reduce the risk of fire, electrical shock or injury when using the appliance, follow basic precautions, including the following:



- Plug into a grounded 3-prong outlet, do not remove grounding prong, do not use an adapter, and do
 not use an extension cord.
- Replace all panels before operating.
- It is recommended that a separate circuit serving only your appliance be provided. Use receptacles
 that cannot be turned off by a switch or pull chain.
- Never clean appliance parts with flammable fluids. These fumes can create a fire hazard or explosion. And do not store or use gasoline or other flammable vapors and liquids in the vicinity of this or any other appliance. The fumes can create a fire hazard or explosion.
- Before proceeding with cleaning and maintenance operations, make sure the power line of the unit is disconnected.
- Do not connect or disconnect the electric plug when your hands are wet.
- Unplug the appliance or disconnect power before cleaning or servicing. Failure to do so can result in electrical shock or death.

• Do not attempt to repair or replace any part of your appliance unless it is specifically recommended in this manual. All other servicing should be referred to a qualified technician.

A WARNING

FOLLOW WARNING CALLOUTS BELOW ONLY WHEN APPLICABLE TO YOUR MODEL

- Use two or more people to move and install appliance. Failure to do so can result in back or other injury.
- To ensure proper ventilation for your appliance, the front of the unit must be completely unobstructed. Choose a well-ventilated area with temperatures above 44°F (7°C) and below 106°F (41°C).
- The appliance should not be located next to ovens, grills or other sources of high heat.
- The appliance must be installed with all electrical, water and drain connections in accordance with state and local codes. A standard electrical supply (115 V AC only, 60 Hz), properly grounded in accordance with the National Electrical Code and local codes and ordinances, is required.
- Do not kink or pinch the power supply cord of the appliance.
- The size of the fuse (or circuit breaker) should be 15 amperes.
- It is important that the appliance be leveled in order to work properly. You may need to make several adjustments to level it.
- All installations must be in accordance with local plumbing code requirements.
- Make certain that the pipes are not pinched, kinked or damaged during installation.
- Check for leaks after connection.
- Never allow children to operate, play with or crawl inside the appliance.
- Do not use solvent-based cleaning agents or abrasives on the interior. These cleaners may damage
 or discolor the interior.
- Use this appliance only for its intended purpose as described in this Owner's Manual.
- Keep fingers out of the "pinch point" areas. Clearances between the doors and between the doors and cabinet are necessarily small. Be careful closing doors when children are in the area.

\Lambda DANGER 🕰

Risk of child entrapment!

Child entrapment and suffocation are not problems of the past. Junked or abandoned appliances are still dangerous, even if they will "just sit in the garage a few days".

Before discarding your old refrigerator:

- Take off the doors
- Leave the shelves in place so that children may not easily climb inside.

- SAVE THESE INSTRUCTIONS -



Reference		Qty on	Reference		Qty on
No.	Part Description	Unit	No.	Part Description	Unit
1	Tap Tower	1	c	Cooling Fan with Beer	1
2	Drink Guardrail	1	0	Line cooling component	1
3	Drip Tray	1	7	Shelf	3
4	Control Panel	1	8	Stainless Steel Door	1
5	Carbon Filter	1	9	Handle	1
			10	Caster Wheels	4

Parts Identification: Tap Tower and D-Style Keg Coupler



NOTE: The tap tower and D-style keg coupler are components from the tap kits, sold separately. There will be number of openings for the tap tower depending on whether a single, double, or triple tap kit was purchased. The provided quantity of tap bodies and tap handles will align with the number of openings on the tap tower.

Parts Identification: CO2 Tank and Regulator



NOTE: The CO_2 tank and regulator are components from the tap kits, sold separately. The pressure relief valve will be located between the high and low pressure gauges for double and triple regulators. There will be two shutoff valves and hose barbs for double regulators and three shutoff valves and hose barbs for triple regulators.

Dimensions





INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS

BEFORE USING YOUR APPLIANCE

- Remove the exterior and interior packing.
- Before connecting the appliance to the power source, let it stand upright for approximately 2 hours. This will reduce the possibility of a malfunction in the cooling system from handling during transportation.
- Clean the interior surface with lukewarm water using a soft cloth.
- Install the handle on the door.

INSTALLATION OF YOUR APPLIANCE

- The appliance is designed for built-in or recessed or free standing installation for indoor or outdoor use.
- CAUTION: This appliance is not designed for the storage of medicine or other medical products.
- Place your appliance on a floor that is strong enough to support it when it is fully loaded. To level the unit, adjust the front leveling legs.
- For free standing installation, 5 inches (127mm) of space between the back and sides of the unit are suggested, which allows the proper air circulation to cool the compressor and condenser. Even for built-in installation, it is a must to keep ¼" (6.35mm) space on each side and at the top. Take care that the air vent at the front of the appliance is never covered or blocked in any way.
- NOTE: It is recommended that you do not install the appliance near an oven, radiator or other heating source. Direct sunlight may affect the acrylic coating and heat sources may increase electrical consumption. Don't install in a location where the temperature will fall below 44°F (7°C). For best performance, do not install the appliance behind a cabinet door or block the base grille.
- Avoid locating the unit in moist areas.
- Plug the appliance into an exclusive, properly grounded wall outlet. Do not under any circumstances
 cut or remove the third (ground) prong from the power cord. Any questions concerning power and/or
 grounding should be directed toward a certified electrician or an authorized service center.

ELECTRICAL CONNECTION

WARNING

Improper use of the grounded plug can result in the risk of electrical shock. If the power cord is damaged, have it replaced by a qualified electrician or an authorized service center.

This appliance should be properly grounded for your safety. The power cord of this appliance is equipped with a three-prong plug which mates with standard three-prong wall outlets to minimize the possibility of electrical shock.

Do not under any circumstances cut or remove the third (ground) prong from the power cord supplied. For personal safety, this appliance must be properly grounded.

This appliance requires a standard 115/120 Volt AC \sim 60Hz three-prong grounded electrical outlet. Have the wall outlet and circuit checked by a qualified electrician to make sure the outlet is properly grounded. When a standard 2-prong wall outlet is encountered, it is your responsibility and obligation to have it replaced with a properly grounded 3-prong wall outlet.

To prevent accidental injury, the cord should be secured behind the appliance and not left exposed or dangling.

The appliance should always be plugged into its own individual electrical outlet which has a voltage rating that matches the rating label on the appliance. This provides the best performance and also prevents overloading house wiring circuits that could cause a fire hazard from overheating. Never unplug the appliance by pulling on the power cord. Always grip the plug firmly and pull straight out from the receptacle. Repair or replace immediately all power cords that have become frayed or otherwise damaged. Do not use a cord that shows cracks or abrasion damage along its length or at either end. When moving the appliance, be careful not to damage the power cord.

EXTENSION CORD

Because of potential safety hazards under certain conditions, it is strongly recommended that you do not use an extension cord with this appliance. However, if you must use an extension cord it is absolutely necessary that it be a UL/CUL-Listed, 3-wire grounding type appliance extension cord having a grounding type plug and outlet and that the electrical rating of the cord be 115 volts and at least 10 amperes.

INSTALLING THE STAINLESS STEEL HANDLE

This appliance includes a stainless steel handle that is not required to operate the unit. To install the handle, follow the instructions below:

- 1. Using a screwdriver to remove the screws on door where the handle is to be installed.
- Align the handle with the screws removed in step # 1. Tighten the screws using a Phillips head screwdriver until the handle is both flush and secured tightly against the door side. (DO NOT over-tighten as this will cause damage to the stainless steel door surface.)



INSTALLING THE KEGERATOR



FIG. A







FIG. C

FIG. D



- Remove all shelving and packaged components from the interior of the kegerator before proceeding. The kegerator can be plugged in, but ensure it is powered off before proceeding.
- Remove the black plastic insulation cap from the top of the kegerator (FIG. A1).
 NOTE: If you are setting up the kegerator as a full beverage cooler, leave the insulation cap installed.
- Place the black rubber gasket, included with the tap kit, on top of the kegerator and align the gasket with the screw holes (FIG. A2).
- Guide the beer line through the opening on top of the kegerator. Secure the tap tower to the kegerator using the included (4) M5 x 16 screws (FIG. A3).
- Attach the tap to the tap tower as shown in FIG. B. Make sure the tap is aligned properly and turn the nut counterclockwise by hand. Fully tighten using the included wrench.
- Screw the tap handle onto the tap shown in FIG. C. NOTE: Tap handles use a standard 3/8"-16 UNC thread to accommodate aftermarket tap handles.
- Ensure the hand valve on the CO₂ tank is closed. Attach the regulator to the filled CO₂ tank and hand tighten the inlet connection nut (FIG. D). Use a wrench for an additional quarter turn, making sure to not overtighten the nut.
- Attach the gas line to the hose barb on the regulator shown in FIG. E. Secure using the included metal clamp and tighten using a flathead screwdriver.
- 9. Connect the keg coupler to the beer keg, but first make sure the handle of the keg coupler is disengaged in the diagonal/upper position. Refer to FIG. F for clarification. Insert the keg coupler into the beer keg and turn 25° clockwise to lock into place. Do not engage the handle yet.



FIG. F

Installing the Kegerator









- 10.Attach the opposite end of the gas line with the pre-installed threaded nut to the keg coupler (FIG. G). Tighten using the included wrench. NOTE: Make sure the clear silicone check valve is inside the keg coupler before attaching the gas line.
- 11.Place a silicone washer on top of the keg coupler and connect the threaded nut from the beer line to the coupler by hand tightening it (FIG. H).
- 12. Tap the keg by pulling the keg coupler handle outwards - away from the keg coupler and pushing it down to lock it into position (FIG. I). Listen for the "click" of the pull handle when it shifts into the final downward position and your keg will be tapped. NOTE: The keg needs to be tapped to fit in the kegerator, otherwise the keg coupler handle will be too high and will prevent the keg from fitting.
- Calibrate the regulator. Refer to next page for detailed instructions.
- 14.Place the CO₂ tank upright inside the left corner of the kegerator and secure using the Velcro strap shown in FIG. J.
- 15.Place the beer keg inside the kegerator.
- 16.Power on the kegerator and set to the desired temperature. We recommend waiting at least 24 hours before dispensing beer to allow the keg to get to temperature and settle.
- 17.Place drip tray in front of the tap tower under the tap. 18.Enjoy your beer!





FIG. I

CALIBRATING THE REGULATOR







FIG. N



- With the shutoff valve on the regulator turned off (perpendicular to the tubing), completely open the hand valve on the CO₂ tank (FIG. L).
- Turn the pressure adjustment knob until the desired pressure is shown on the low pressure guage (FIG. M). We recommend setting the regulator between 10-12 PSI to start and adjust later as needed. Turn the knob clockwise to increase pressure and counterclockwise to decrease pressure.

NOTE: Other conditions such as altitude or beer type may require additional adjustments.

- Open the shutoff valve on the regulator so it is parallel with the tubing (FIG N).
- 4. The keg coupler is designed with a pressure relief valve (PRV) as shown in FIG. O. Briefly pull the ring on the PRV to allow CO₂ gas to vent. This will permit CO₂ gas to flow through the regulator and help obtain a more accurate reading on the low pressure guage.

NOTE: We recommend following up on any adjustment to the regulator with a brief pull of the PRV ring to ensure an accurate output reading. Check for leaks.

OPERATING YOUR APPLIANCE

It is recommended you install the appliance in a place where the ambient temperature is between 44° and 106°F (7° - 41°C). If the ambient temperature is above or below the recommended temperatures, the performance of the unit may be affected. For example, placing your unit in extreme cold or hot conditions may cause interior temperatures to fluctuate. The range of 32 - 65°F (0 - 18°C) may not be reached.

CONTROL PANEL



ON/OFF Power

To turn the appliance ON or OFF, touch the 🖒 symbol and hold for 5 seconds.

Key Lock

If no key is touched for 2 minutes, the controls will be locked automatically. To release the lock, touch the \mathbb{A} and ∇ symbols at the same time for at least 5 seconds.

Setting the Temperature Control

You can choose between Fahrenheit and Celsius for the temperature display by touching the \mathscr{Y}_{F} symbol. A Fahrenheit or Celsius degree indicator will appear next to the temperature display window.

- You can set the temperature by touching the UP and DOWN symbols. When you push the two buttons for the first time, the LED readout will show the original temperature set previously.
- The temperature you are setting will increase by one degree each time you touch the UP symbol, and will decrease by one degree each time you touch the DOWN symbol.
- The range of the temperature control is from 32°F to 65°F.
- To view the set temperature at any time, touch the UP or DOWN symbol. The set temperature
 will flash in the display window for 5 seconds. After 5 seconds, the temperature inside the unit
 will reappear in blue in the display window.

NOTE:

- If the unit is unplugged, or power is lost or turned off, you must wait 3 to 5 minutes before
 restarting the unit. If you attempt to restart before this time delay, the unit will not start.
- When you use the unit for the first time or restart the unit after it has been shut off for a long time, there could be a few degrees variance between the temperature you select and the one indicated on the LED readout. This is normal and is due to the length of the activation time. There should not be a problem once the unit has been running for a few hours.

Interior Light

The unit is equipped with an interior LED light which can be turned ON or OFF by touching the \heartsuit symbol.

CARE AND MAINTENANCE

CLEANING YOUR APPLIANCE

- Turn off the power, unplug the appliance, and remove all items, including shelves.
- Wash the inside surfaces with a solution of warm water and baking soda (about 2 tablespoons of baking soda to a quart of water).
- Wash the shelves with a mild detergent solution.
- Wring excess water out of the sponge or cloth when cleaning the area where the controls are located, or any electrical parts.
- Wash the outside cabinet with warm water and mild liquid detergent. Rinse well and wipe dry with a clean soft cloth.
- Use an approved stainless steel cleaner to clean the door and handle. Do not use steel wool or a steel brush on the stainless steel.

CAUTION:

Failure to unplug the appliance during cleaning could result in electrical shock or other personal injury.

POWER FAILURE

Most power failures are corrected within a few hours and should not affect the temperature of your appliance if you minimize the number of times the door is opened. If the power is going to be off for a longer period of time, you need to take the proper steps to protect the contents.

VACATION TIME

- Short vacations: Leave the appliance operating during vacations of less than three weeks.
- Long vacations: If the appliance will not be used for several months, remove all items and turn off the appliance. Clean and dry the interior thoroughly. To prevent odor and mold growth, leave the door open slightly, blocking it open if necessary.

MOVING YOUR APPLIANCE

- 1. Remove all items.
- 2. Securely tape down all loose items (shelves) inside your appliance.
- 3. Turn the adjustable legs up to the base to avoid damage.
- 4. Tape the door shut.
- 5. Be sure the appliance stays secure in the upright position during transportation. Also, protect the outside of the appliance with a blanket or similar item.

ENERGY SAVING TIPS

- The appliance should be located in the coolest area of the room or outdoor location, away from heat producing appliances and out of direct sunlight.
- Ensure that the unit is adequately ventilated. Never cover air vents.
- Do not keep the door open any longer than necessary.
- Let hot foods cool to room temperature before placing in the unit. Overloading the unit forces the compressor to run longer.
- Be sure to wrap foods properly, and wipe containers dry before placing them in the unit. This cuts down on frost build-up inside the unit.
- Unit shelves and storage bins should not be lined with aluminum foil, wax paper, or paper toweling. Liners interfere with cold air circulation, making the unit less efficient.
- Organize and label food to reduce door openings and extended searches. Remove as many items as needed at one time, and close the door as soon as possible.

TROUBLESHOOTING

You can solve many common problems easily, saving you the cost of a possible service call. Try the suggestions below to see if you can solve the problem before calling a service technician.

Troubleshooting Guide

PROBLEM	POSSIBLE CAUSE			
	Not plugged in			
The unit does not operate.	The appliance is turned off.			
	Tripped circuit breaker or blown fuse.			
	Check the temperature control setting.			
	External environment may require a higher setting.			
The unit is not cold enough.	The door is opened too often.			
	The door is not closed completely.			
	The door gasket does not seal properly.			
Turns on and off frequently.	The ambient temperature is warmer than normal.			
	A large amount of contents has been added to the			
	unit. The deep is second to a strengthere			
	The door is opened too often.			
	The door is not closed completely.			
	The temperature control is not set correctly			
	The door gasket does not seal properly.			
	Not plugged in.			
The light does not work.	Tripped circuit breaker or blown fuse.			
	The light switch is "OFF".			
Vibrations	Check to assure that the appliance is level.			
	A rattling noise may come from the flow of the			
	refrigerant, which is normal.			
	As each cycle ends, you may hear gurgling sounds			
The unit seems to make too much noise.	caused by the flow of refrigerant in your unit.			
	Contraction and expansion of the inside walls may			
	cause popping and crackling noises.			
	The appliance is not level.			
The door will not close properly.	The appliance is not level.			
	The door was reversed and not properly re-installed			
	The gasket is dirty.			
	The shelves are out of position.			
Display shows "EL" or "EH".	The air temperature sensor has failed.			
	•			

If you've checked the table above and find that you still need help with your appliance, call our Customer Service facility at 855-520-1559 between 8:00AM and 4:30PM CST. We will do our best to answer your questions.

A WARNING A

CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 - WARNING: This product can expose you to BPA and Styrene, which is on the list of substances known by the state of California to cause cancer, birth defects or reproductive harm. For more information go to: www.p65Warnings.ca.gov



LIMITED WARRANTY

Coyote will warrant to the original purchaser of this product that it will be free of defects in material and craftsmanship for the set time frame listed below, when the product is assembled and used under normal operating conditions set forth in this manual:

All Parts – 1 Year Limited Warranty

Coyote will require a proof of purchase to validate the date of purchase. Therefore, you should save your receipt in a safe and accessible place, in case it is required as a proof of purchase.

This Limited Warranty is limited to the replacement of parts at Coyote's discretion, that prove to be defective under normal use and service. Furthermore, Coyote may require the return of the damaged part(s) for examination before issuing replacement parts. If Coyote would like to have the damaged product returned first, the shipping charges must be paid by the customer. No returns or shipments back will be accepted without prior Coyote authorization.

Upon receipt of the damaged parts and to Coyote's satisfaction, if the original part is proven defective, Coyote may elect to approve the claim and issue a replacement part, without charge.

This warranty does not cover any failures or operating difficulties due to abuse, accident, misuse, alteration, misapplication, vandalism, maintenance, improper installation, operation or service, as stated in this manual. Furthermore, this warranty does not cover cosmetic wear from normal use, such as; scratches, dents, corrosion or discoloration caused by weather, heat, chemicals, paint loss, surface rust, or abuse during installation. Damage due to severe weather conditions such as hail, hurricanes, earthquakes, tsunami's, tornadoes, an Act of God or terrorism, is not covered by this warranty.

Warranty Restrictions:

- This warranty is non-transferable and only applies to the original owner.
- This warranty is void if used for a commercial or rental purpose.
- This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may have other rights, which vary from state to state.
- · For assistance or more information on this products warranty, please contact:

Coyote Customer Service 855-520-1559 Monday – Friday 8:00am – 4:30pm CST